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See continuation sheet

Verbal BOWSW ggscri tion

undary of the Allemsville Historic District is shown as the heaviest line
on the accompanying map entitled "Allensville Historic District,” which has a scale
of 1" = 200' and is a composite of Todd County Property Identification Maps entitled

"Allensville" and "Map 102."

["J'see continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

The boundary of the Allensville Historic District includes the h

ouses, churches,

comme¥cial buildings, municipal building and outbuildings that historically have been
constituted the streetscape of Allensville's main corridor and maintain historic

integrity.

In most cases, the boundary follows property lines so entire parcels

See continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitte _ Claudia R. Brown

organization ___N/A

date _August 1988

street & number 309 Calvin Road

telephone 919/828-8402

state North Carolina _zip code 27605

city or town ___Raleigh



8. Statement of Significance
‘Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
[ nationally [ statewide locally

Applicable National Register Criteria [XJA [ ]B [Xc¢ [ D

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [ ]8 [Jc [Jo [Je [JF [JG ya

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Transportation c. 1860-1941 1860
Architecture

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person ’ Architect/Builder
N/A Billy King (builder of several later 19th-

to early 20th-century houses)

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

Throughout the last decades of the nineteenth century and most of the first half
of the twentieth, Allensville, Kentucky was the epitome of the small railroad town.
In the midst of the fertile rural landscape of southeastern Todd County, Allensville
thrived with the steady and reliable cadence of freight and passenger trains arriving
and departing each day. The railroad was the most efficient means of shipping the
area's agricultural products to regional markets as well as the avenue that opened
Allensville to the world outside its surrounding fields by bringing so many of the
goods and services desired by prosperous southeastern Todd County. Within 200 yards
of the railroad tracks, Allensville's main street was lined on both sides with all
sorts of shops, professional offices, banks, restaurants, and hotels, not to mention
saloons and an opera house. As necessary, residents of southeastern Todd County
would travel to Elkton, the governmental seat at the center of the county, but for
most shopping, day-to-day business and socializing, Allensville served them well.

During the era of railroads fueling economic growth as they threaded their way
across Kentucky, Allensville resembled scores of other communities spawned by the
locomotive. In contrast to so many of these towns which have changed markedly with
the times, Allensville today has a special identity due to the retention of major
vestiges of its late nineteenth- and early twentieth-—century fabric. The depots no
longer exist and several early commercial buildings have been lost to benign neglect,
but dozens of well preserved houses, churches and stores along the principal
thoroughfare vividly recall Allensville's ambiance in its heydey as a railroad town.
Through their specific associations with individuals and institutionms, these
buildings represent the the town's development triggered by the railroad. They also
represent the popular building types and styles of their day and thereby recall the
appearance of a small rural Kentucky railroad town of a bygone era.

The present town of Allensville began and developed in response to the location
of a depot on a new railroad line in 1860. In reality, however, Allensville is the

See continuation sheet



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
D tic: ingle dwellin Domestic: sigle dwelling
erce/T ¢ _specialty store Religion: religious structure
Religion: ligious ructu Apricultural/Subsistence: tobacco stripping
Vacant

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)
(enter categories from instructions)

foundation __brick

Late Victorian: Queen Anne walls weatherboard

Other: Folk Victorian brick

Other: Turn—-of-the-Century Commercial roof asphalt

Mid-19th Century: Italian Villa other applied millwork
shingles

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

Allensville, Kentucky, is a small town that developed around a depot of the
Louisville and Nashville Railroad's Memphis Branch constructed in 1860 and exper-
ienced its heyday during the late nineteenth— and early twentieth-centuries as an
important area shipping point and hub of commercial activity. Although the L & N
ended service to Allensville in 1947, a significant portion of the town's historic
fabric survives relatively intact as the Allensville Historic District, encompassing
approximately 18 acres along the town's principal thoroughfare. The district's 31
primary contributing resources consist of 18 houses and three churches in two groups
to the northwest and southeast of a business area containing nine commercial proper-
ties and a municipal building. Eight non-contributing post-World War II houses, a
post office, a church annex, a trailer and a truck repair garage are interspersed
among the historic resources. In addition, there are numerous contributing and non-
contributing ancillary resources.

Allensville 1is approximately five miles north of the Tennessee line in south-
eastern Todd County, which is a gently rolling terrain offering expansive vistas of
open fields separated by sizable stands of hardwoods. This very fertile region is
occupied primarily by £farms averaging a few hundred acres cultivated with wheat,
corn, soybeans, tobacco and conola, a new crop that is a form of rapeseed similar to
turnip greens. Allensville is one mile southeast of the junction of the area's two
principal roads -—- Kentucky 79, also known as the Russellville and Clarksville
(Tennessee) Road, and Kentucky 102, formerly the Elkton, Allensville and Keysburg
Road. Allensville originated early in the nineteenth century as a small hamlet at
the crossroads, but all of the original antebellum buildings disappeared after the
town moved to land next to the railroad. Today the intersection is marked only by the
modern buildings of the Allensville Crop Service and small directional signs for
Allensville and two businesses in the town. When approaching from the mnorth, all
that can be seen of Allensville is its dense hardwood canopy punctuated by the large
brick Haddox House near at the north end of the district and the metal silos and
pipes of the Allensville Grain Company at the town's west edge.

South of Kentucky 79, Kentucky 102 curves to the east as it passes fields and
lanes 1leading to well-screened farmhouses before reaching Belmont Cemetery and the
former site of Allensville's public school just north of the town limits. Allensville
is "one square mile centered on the junction of Kentucky 102 and the former L & N
Railroad tracks, now owned by R. J. Corman Railroad of Bardstown, Kentucky. As it
continues into town, the two-lane highway becomes Main Street, although there are no
street signs and none of the buildings in town has a street address. At the north
end of the district, Allensville's two largest houses —— The Pepper Place (entry P)
and the Haddox House (B) -- occupy sizable parcels abutting cultivated fields, which

See continuation sheet
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1. Name of Property
historic name Allensville Historic District
other names/site number N/A

2. Location

street & number Kentucky 102 (Main St.) NA not for publication
city, town Allensville NA vicinity
state  Kentucky code KY county Todd code 219 Zip code 42202
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
private [ building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
O public-local [X] district 40 18  buildings
l:] public-State D site sites
X! public-Federal [ structure 1 2 structures
E] object objects
41 _ 20 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register 0 .

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this

nomination [_] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opmlon the property meets [_]does not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

(Dgaed () lpge— LO-C L
Signature of certifying official Dav1d/ﬁ Morgan, State Historic Preservation OfficBate
No comment received from Federal Preser i i : tification
State or Federal agency and bureau letter.

In my opinion, the property Dmeets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

NA
Signature of commenting or other official Date

NA—=gece attached notification letter
State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
lI,ﬁereby, certify that this property is:

entered in the National Register. D . }4
[_Isee continuation sheet. &j LU/KZL M !///1;/ 'lff(?

Ddetermined eligible for the National
Register. D See continuation sheet.

[Jdetermined not eligible for the
National Register.

["Jremoved trom the National Register.
E]other, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
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form most of the periphery within the town's boundaries. South of these houses,
property ltining the main road is more densely developed. fis the road arcs gently to
the south, residences and churches give way to the commercial area straddling ths
ratiroad tracks, Here, early buildings appear along the sast side ot the street,
which is the outer side of the curve, dominating the view from either end of the
street, while on the west side there are empty iots north of the tracks and small
modern buildings to the south which are excluded from the district. South of the
commercial area, residences once again characterize the historic district which
cantinues along only one side of the street due to loss of integrity or vecent
cognstruction dates of the +few houses on the oither. West and southwest of the
historic district, a few narrow lanes traverse a more sparsely developed ares of
houses {many of them extensively altered or deteriorated), abandoned buildings that
ance housed blacksmith shops and other services, and the Allensville Grain Company
compiey on a rise next to the railroad.

—
-

size and building placement vary throughout the Allensville Histeoric
District, The closer the prowimity to the railroad tracks, building density becomes
increasing greater, with commercial resources closely spaced and sometimes  sharing
party walls. The houses and churches to the northwest and southeast tend to  have
wider lots the closer they are to the town limits. FBuilding setbacks are nonexistent
tor most of the commercial properties, while many of the buildings to the north and
outh  have small front vyards and those at the ends of the district are large.

tariy, wparcels tend to be quite deeo at the endz of the district. it the south
gdge, atter the main street turns sharply to the east, the lots generally are af
unifarm width and most are several hundred feet deep wiith large grassy back yards or
vegetable gardens extending to adjoining farmiand. Mpst houses are sarvounded by
lawns and mature foundation plantings and are shaded by tall trees, 0f the three
vacant lots in the district, only the former depot lot (block 13, lot 2; see map! was
gver developed, Most of the properties are fronted by concrete sidewalks, which are
stepped with changes in elevation in the business area; one segment of an early brick
sidewalk remains at the south end of the district.

Simi

Architecturally, the district is hest characterized as Victorian, Although
yles and types range from Italianate to Turn-of-the-fentury Coemercial to Faolk
tarian and Neoclassical Revival, the great majority of the buildings are popular
renditions of the Buesen fnne style, many apparenfiy ;ﬁSplFﬁﬂ by or lifted directiy
from  builders guides. While more than half of the commercial and institutional
buildings are of masonry construction, ail of the houses are wooden with the eucep-
tiogn af the trick Haddoxz House. The two most distinctive residences are two stories
in height, but the rest of the dwellings in the district are & single story (many
with tall aztvLa}5 a5 are all but the earliest of the commercial buildings. Overall,
the scale of the respurces is modest or, in anthropomorphic termss, human, lending the
district an inviting gualify. Despite the smatiering of new construction, the
concentration of well preserved late nineteesnth- and esarly twantieth-century
buildings gives visitors ithe impresszion ¢f haviag been transported to a bygone era,
albeit one in which hard times has left most of the town's shops eepty.
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g United Methodist Church (T}
iving building in the entire
yle-front sanctuary featuring a
t back very slightly from the

the district’'s three churches, the A
1847 is the oldest and may be the

{in  the Methodist Church, the low tower is

main facade, while those of the Church of Christ (#; 1877) and Mt. Gilead Baptist
Church (0; 1875} oroject from the front elevation to accommodate the entrances. The
Methodist and Baptist churches are of solid brick construction, with each hay ot the
front and side slevations consisting of a single tall window in & slightly recessed
nlane marked by corbelling, In contrast to the pointed arched windows and entrances
nf the frame Church of Christ and United Methodist Church, ME. Gilead’'s only allusiaon
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facade.
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Bothic Revival is the small trecery in its belfry vent. In contrast, Mt.
reveals neoclassical influences in its round-arched openings and corbelled

heneath the wain facade cornice and at the tpp of the octagonal domed tower.

fwa~5tary brick Haddox House at the north end of the district wmay be
‘s nldest dwelling, built around 18703 it certainly is the most i1mposing.

ille
roe two-story brick building exemplifies the I[talianate style in its massinag,

hipped roofline, tall round-arched windows with prominent hood molds, and,
iceably, the four-stage tower with a mansard roof projecting from the main
A deep seiback and numerous tall shade trees are appropriate to the grand
the house.

of the district s houses were erected between approximately 1880 ang 1910

t
ikit the influence of the Hueen Anns stvle in varying degrees. The earliest
]

s The Pepper Flace, also is the most exuberant and may have established a
fAllensville with its rich decorative program grafted onto a traditional

f
ouse by pe= Although the house may have originated in the early 1B40s as a
B

two-story, one-room-deep structure, its enlarged L-shaped configuraticn
teg +from the 1BBOs as does the Rueep fAnne style detailing characteris-
and porch. There are heavily molded
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Assorted components of this standard miliwork ornament appeared in a variety of
cosbinations on the spate of houses bullt throughout the historic district during the
two decades spanning  the turn of this cenbury. Although they are more aodest  in
scalae, a few resemble The FPepper Flace as Folk Victorian houses identified by tradi

forms embeliished with popular Gueen Anng carved, turned and sawn  orna ?
p is the ﬂﬂﬂ-cter ¢ T-shaped King-Carvell House (8&) built by
who 15 believed to have constructec most of these turn-co
ajority of thle graup, however, are more full-hlown sxanp
1ical Queen Anne form of a central stegply-pitched hip-
t gabled wings on the front and sids slevations. a4 fesw
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seven one-story weatherbosrded bhouses that fall into this sub-type display the very
tvpical sawn and turned bargshoard or ornamental bracing in the gables, but others
gre qguite distinciive. For example, the porch of the Shinnick House (HH) has an
angled entrance bay marked by a tall gable filled with a single large sunburst, while
continupus curved spandrels linking turned posts lend an arcaded effect to the porch
of the Mt. Gilead Baptist Church Farsonage {(Jdd). ft the Russell-Barnes House (CO),
the imbrecated shingies of the front gable extend through & panelled frieze into the
lower wall to cover a bracketed hood above a pair of windows, The Hughes House (I}
displays the growing popularity of neoclassical forms early in this century in  its
Faliadian attic window and box porch posts, which contrast ta the more characteristi-
cally Victorian stained glass transoms and scallopped spandrels. By around 1910, the
neoclassical revival style’s supplanting of the Hueen Anne was evident in  the
istrict in such dweliings as the Joe Orr House (DB) with its basically rectangular
form, restrained detailing classical moldings and Tuscan porch calumns.

With one exception, all of the commercial buildings in the Allensville Historic
istrict were built after 1880 as a single story with false parapets or tall cornices
nr  added height and embellishment. The two-story gable-front Walters-Fage Building
iL) probably was built in the 1B70s and is of solid brick construction with a plain
upper wain facade. In contrast, the upper facades of the later commercial buildings
are ornamented, though the storefronts of the Trade Falace (F) and First State Rank
{J} resemble that of the Walters-Fage Building in their wooden framework with a
recessed  entrance, panelled bulkheads beneath display windows, and tail transoms.
The Trade Falace is of frame construction, but the wooden storefront is framed by
decorative cast ivaon piers and the rectangular false parapet is covered in metal
richly  ornamented with zig-zag and 7u11¢te motifs Mext door, the plain weather-
front elevation of the oOouilding thdt gnce housed a retail shop  and
sville’'s post office is saved from complete austerity by an applied scallopped

deiineating a clipped gable parapet. The popularity of prominent cornices was
asting, &5 demonstrated by that of the 1909 First State Bank, which is embossed

with brackets, and the molded and bracketed cornice executed in wood high-
ing W. L. Breakfield Grocery and Hardware {Y) built in 1928. By the end of the

however, the prevailing style was rather severe, featuring steppsd parapets
tat buttresses such as those characterizing the Kentucky tabel CLospany’s
ng (M) completed in 194! and the 1937 Municipal Building (H}, both of masonry
uction.
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fiverall, the integrity of the Allensville Historic District is relatively high.
idering the almost total decline of the town’'s retail business during the past
y years, the survival of even a few of the early commercial buildings, particu-
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the wooden ones, is notable, as is their fairly good state of opreservation
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te wunderutilization and resultant deterioratian. Fortumately, most of the
zag  have vemained occupied and well maintained and thaose that have suffered
iect due to  abandonment have been restored: wvery few early houses have been
plared with modern dwellings. filterations consisf primarily of replacement siding
zdditions, Although several hopuses have had their weatherboards covered in

pooe B o
ul

Pt
s N
%
bl
Wi
4



NPS Form 10-800-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
{e-00)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7 Page 4 Allensville Historic District, Allensville, Kentucky

s
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tos  shingles or aluasinum or vinyl siding, all retain their original windows,
and trim. The side and rear vards of many of the domestic properties contain
zg8  sheds, which wusually are histaric yet somewhat altered, and modern free-
nding garages which tend to be fairly unobtrusive,
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use there are no street addresses in Allensville, Todd County property identifi-
n map designations are given for esach property. Properties shown on map 102 are
.
id

Lo
#7]

[l
e T HU
we e T

- e

ated only by a lot number. For those properties on the Allensville map, which
entified by both block and lob numbers, the title of the map is aomitted for the
at  hrevity. All properties also are keyed by letter to the accompanying
ch/boundary map.]
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1 House. fMap 102, lot i3A. The hipped root with . lower gabled wings
ntifies this building as a popular type of Bueen Anne style house. The
ytherboarded one-story house is well preserved on the exterior, having retained

Drluxnal elements including a Victorian spoolwork screen door. Ornamental

ures include bargeboard and sawn raking beoards in the gables, latticework
txn patterns in several window sashes, and turned columns and Tuscan columns
'at the wraparound porch. The house was built for Mrs. Gussie Haddex Gill,
daughter of Charles W. Haddox who had the large Italianate house on an adjoining
parcel built. Until recently, her son Felton Gill lived here for several
decades. (L}

Garage -~ Small shed-roofed huilding sheathed in vertical boards. (0)
Workshop —-- One-story gable-roofed building with board and batten siding. (L)

ddox_House. Map 10Z, lot 24, Set far back from the road and fraonted by a
ve gt tall hardwoods, the Haddox House is Allensville's most imposing
ue to its brick constructieon, large size and Italianate styling incor-
ng a four-stage tower. Tall round-arched windows, many of them paired,
penetrate the massing of a cubical core expanded by shallow offset wings on  the
front and side elevations, all capped by shallow hip roofs. A tall mansard roof
covered in decoratively patterned slate tops the tower, which rises +from the
tront recess where it accommodates the main entrance. Ornamental features also
include a wmolded cornice and & prominent frieze bearing brackets interspersed
with molded panels at the main block and tower, applied hood malds at the main
tacade windows, and a one-story polygonal bay in the front wing. A pedimented
frontispiece enframes the recessed, round-arched entrance with double doors. The
small shed-rocfed porch with Tuscan columns at the west end of the main facade
appears to be an early twentieth-century vreplacement. & modern brick-veneered
additian has enlarged the original opae-story ell with shallow hipped roof  and

rectangular windows in segmental arches to a full-facade rear wing. The  Tthouse
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was built arcund 1870 by Charles W. Haddox, a farmer and merchant who moved tao
fliensville from his birthplace in Logan County in 1Bé6. In 1849 he bought a
grocery in  Allensville and from around 1872 to his death in 1BBZ aoperated it
with his brother, Claude E. Haddox. (0}

fGarage -- Modern gable-front, balloon-frame building. (NG}

Storage_Building -- Early tuwentieth-century gable-front building covered in
vertical boards. (0}

Swimming Foogl surrounded by chain link fence. (NC)

ffice. This small gable-front building veneered 1in  pink
on the site of the Claude Haddox House (razed). (NE)

D. Hipor_Houss. Block 10, lot 1. In its overall form and decoration, this one-
story fBueen Anne style house clearly dates to the early years of this century.
The buiiding displays sawn and turned ornamental bracing in the offset gabled
wings projecting from the hip-roofed central block, corbelled interior chimneys
and simple crown lintels at one-over-one double-hung sash windows. fipplicatian
of asbestos shingles and screening of the wraparound front porch are the only
gexterior alterations, Curtis Minor, co-owner of a local grocery, had the house
built. He was succeeded here by his son, James Minor, who continued to operate
the grocery alone prior to moving to Russellville, KY in the 1940s. (D)

[Lex]

-~ This small one-and-one-half-story gable-roofed building with a door  at
level in the gable end and a wide doorway on the east side is sheathed in
and batten siding and now used as a garage. (C)

R AT 1)
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douse. Block 10, lot Z. A modern one-story, weatherboarded ranch house occupies
the former site of a tenant house. There also was a wooden commercial building
at the southeast corner of the lot, today marked only by a set of stone steps,
which housed Mitchell’'s Drug Store from the 1910s to the 1930s. (NE)

T

Yrade Falace. Block 10, lat 3. fespite its deteriorated conditicn, the
unaltered ont of the Trade Palace renders it an excellent vrepresentative
sample of the type of wooden commercial building that characterized asuch of
iensville’'s business district at the turn of this century. The small one-story
ble-front building has an elaborate cast iran front consisting of panelled and
idéed piers, a large rectangular parapet embossed with =zig-zag and foliate
roll motifs, and, at the top, & small gabled parapet with crown molding bearing
e words THRADE FALACE in relief. Hetween the iron piers, the wooden and glass
gfrant  includes panelled bulkheads, two-paned transoms across the entira
, and plate glass display windows flanking a recessed central entrance of
HOOrS. A metal awning frame with decorative scrollwork remains attached
top of the sterefront. Brick-patternsd asphalt covers the side elevations
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and an original skylight remains near the rear of the building. Watkins Gill and
Henry Viers operated the Gill &% Viers, & popular dry goods store, from the 1B90s
until  the mid 1(930s, It served as a public school in 1937 to 1938 while a new
brick school was under construction north of town, and later was used as =&
restaurant for a short while. Today it is used during the winter for stripping
tohacco. (L)

6. (Farmer) Post Office/Butcher Shop.  Block 10, lot 4. A clipped gable parapet
defined by a scallopped frieze distinguishes this weatherboarded commercial
building erected at the turn af this century. There are two simple starefronts
flush with the main facade: the smaller unit to the east, marked by one window
and & door with a shed hond, for many vears housed a succession of businesses,
including a butcher shop and restaurant: the larger unit with a fixed shed awning
sheltering a central door and two windows contained fllensville’s post office
until the current one was built in 1965, The building currently is used in the
winter for stripping tobacco. (L)

H. Municipal Building. PRlock 10, lot 8. The Town of Allensville had this one-story
cinder block building erected as the community's first town hall in 1938 on  the
site of a late pineteenth-century brick commercial building razed several vyears

earlier. The only decorative feature of the austere building is a granite plaque
above the main entrance carved with the words MUNICIPAL BUILDING and &4 D 1938.
In 1987, a new front door was installed and the flanking bays with metal-+framed
windows were replaced with garage doors of corrugated metal panels in order faor
the building to be used by the volunteer fire department. Despite these changes,
the building vretains its flat buttresses and stepped parapet which define ths
three-bay main facade. (L)

I. iIelephons_ nge. Block 10, lot 6. This tiny one-story brick building erected
in the i darter of this century housed Allensville’'s telephone exchanage for
Mmany years. The building s lower front is recessed with a concrete porch  and
ashestaos-shingled wall containing a soclid metal door and swall window. Dark
grownish-red wire brick covers the upper front elevation. (0}

d. First B5tate BHank. Biock 10, lot 7. Although the metal gable bearing the
construction date "1909" has been removed from the top of the main facade, the
raemaindsr  of this one-story brick building's front is relatively inatact. The

storef{ront survives with panelled wooden bulkheads and recessed double doors to
one side of the display windows, which now are covered with metal sheeting as is
the d{ull-facade transom. A molded wopden cornice remains in place above the
storafront, in contrast to the robust metal sntablature at the roofline with

a
panellad frieze and melded cornice betwaen large modillions At sither end. ihe
brick ¥i51é between the cornices bears a mstal plague with FIRST STATE  EBAN in
retiet, The bank was a local effort initiated by meabers of fue gill Tdmlfy and
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other hbusinessmen, but it remained in cperation less than a decade. In later
years it was occupied by grocery stores and a pool hall. Today it 15 used Faor
strigping tobacco. (C)

F. Barage. Block 10, lots § & 9. A block of brick commercial hbuildings, which
included a grocery and warehouse, formerly ocoupied this property that is now the
site of a modern shed-roofed truck repair shop of cinder block constructian.

(NE)
L. Walters-tage Building. Block 14, lot 1. This two-story gable-front bGrick build-
ing dating to the third quarter of the nineteenth century is Allensville’'s oldest

remaining commercial building and is of special interest as the anly building in
the district asscociated with the community’s laroe black population. Local black
merchant George Walters had the building erected for his grocery, which was
cantinued into this century by his sons George and John following his  death.
Virtually intact, the building has a two-bay main elevation with & wooden store-
front sporting panelled bulkheads beneath {four-pane display windows, a central
two-door entrance, and two-pane transoms topped by a dentil frieze across the
full  width. fipparently the large shed-rocted porch which acts as a canopy faor
the gascline pumps was preceded by & two-tisred porch, as indicated by the joist
marks at the base of the front gable. At the second story, the two windows an
the 4ront and the four apenings on each side are covered by shutters and feature
heavy wonden  lintels and sills, The shuttered window at the west end of the
outh facade actually is a false window, orobably installed for the sake of 3
Eymmﬁf§ cal design. After the MWalters grocery the building's first floor was
porupied in succession by & restaurant, chair €actary, ancther grocery operated
by a wnite merchant, and Fage's Hardware Store. Decpife failures in portions of

the rear and side walls, the building remains in
ba

1=
i 2 55 Fage’s Bervice Station,
the favorite gathering spot of 4

}

1
lensville men. (C

P

_“““»m_wummm_ngdani, Biock 14, iot 7. In the 1530s, #William Pritz
PR 2 in the two-story gable-roofed building

c
icky Woven Label Lo
the property for the sanutacture of clothing labels. (D)

B

The company & success soon rendered  the simpls ractangular, weatherboarded
huiiding inadeguate. In 1941 Pritv moved his looms into the new building imme-
diately to the northeast which he had constructed in the rzar vard of his house
ot stone from his farm near Allenmville. Thiz aps-story building is similar 1o
the HMunicipal Buillding in its use of fiat buitresses to define the tacade topped
by 2 stenped paranetf. Eact of the seven bays of the main facade contained a
largs  mulfi-paned LAl noow, In 1955, Francis Manufacturing Company of
Bpeburck,  South Carpolina gurcﬁaaef the company, which continued Lo produce labels
ey the mid-1%970s. Bince then, the roof has beea replaced and two af the front

garage door needed for the building’s current

}
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_House. Block 14, lot 9. A rich variety of standard millwork oraament
this late nineteenth-century Folk Victorian house. The weatherboarded
d building consists of a two-story gable-front wing with a central chimney
hled one-story lateral wing with an interior gable-end chimney. A shed
ross most of the one-story wing's main facade has chamfered boy posts and
spandrels, and shelters a raised four-panel door with a transom and three
ltights above a raised panel to either side. The two-story wing features tall
narrow shuttered rectangular windows rapped by prominent dentilled and
bracketed crowns. The front end of the wing is three-sided with oversized sawn
brackets at the top of the canted walls. An unusual aspect is the frieze at the
base of the gable which creates a pediment but is interrupted by three dentilled
and bracketed crowns -~- one above the central window and the others placed
unespectedly above the oversized corner brackets. A cutwork vent in the center
of a +field of +iush horizontal beards and large dentils in the raking cornice
complete the pediment composition. The house is believed tc have been built by
the Cole family, Pete Cole, who operated a.rock crusher and. threshing machines,
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lived here esarly in this centuary. The house passed to his daughter after her
marriage to William F. Fritz, who established his Eentucky Woven Label Company on
the property. Two sizable cne-story additions have been constructed at the rear

of the two original wings in recent years. {C)

0. MHt. Bilead Baptist Church. Block 14, lot 8. Mt. Gilead Baptist Church is the
pldest rcongregation in Allensville, aorganized in "old" Allensville in 1815, Two
meeting houses near the original settlement preceded the present brick building,
constructed in 18735, Tall round-arched windows, decorative brickwork, and a
three-tiered polygaonal tower render HL. Gilead the maost architecturally
distinctive of the three churches in the district. The gable-+rant church is
constructed in  running bond and is  characterized by shuttered mulii-pansd,
double-hung sash windows in bays defined by shallow buttresses. The four bays
and windows of sach side are of uniform width escept for those next to the rear
waill which are very narrow, while the front bays are distinguished by large
corbelled brick dentils that are stepped to follow the line of the molded wooden
gattle cornice. Projecting from the center of the main tacade, the tower caontains
a tall, slightly recessed round-arched entrance with panelled reveals, a belfry
marted by a tall round-arched wonden vent with cutwork tracery, and & round
wooden  vent at the third stage topped with corbelled brick dentils; the tower
root is an octagonal dome covered in decorative pressed metal. A modern one-
story, gable-roofed rear wing covered in aluminum siding is slightly wider than
the original brick structure. (€}
T use, Block 1, lot 1. This exu-
berantly decorated weatherboarded house is one of Allensville’'s oldest dwellings.
ihe L-shsoed house is two stories tall and one rpom  deep, with an interior
imney in each gable end of the front wing and a central chimney in the rear
Lig. A central attic gable marks sach of the two principal elevations. Most of
the double~hung sash windows are segmental arched and those on the main eleva-

The Fepper Flace/Wooldridge-Walton-Fepper Hous

im

T
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tions have proaminent bracketed and molded craowns; the windows in the front wing
sitend to  the floor. One long porch wraps around the entire front and south

facades, Two staircases -- gne in the center hall of the front wing and ancther
in a connecting hall in the rear wing -- and differences in interior detailing
indicate that the front wing pre-dates the rear. On the exterior, the upiform
application of robust willwork decoration concentrated at the roofline  and

orohes suggests a remodelling in the 1880s, perhaps when the house was enlarged.
A frieze of drop pendant brackets beneath s molded cornice marks the long main
and south facades and the north gable end. #11 except the rear weatherboarded
gable are heavily ornamented with carved sunbursts at the corners enframing a
panelled and embossed grid flanked by scallopped shingles. The porch features
projecting bays at each entrance, chamfered posts with heavy melding, panelled
bases, and tall sawn spandrels, and a bracketed friece. Molded panels and a
heavy @bracketed crown surround & richly panelled front door with a tall window:
the antique stained glass is a recent addition. Alterations include enclosure of
the shed porch along the entire rear elevations, the addition of a gable-roofed
banguet room to an original ane-story rear ell.

The earliest deed {for the two-acre tract was recorded in 1873 and cites the
groperty’'s earlier conveyance from F. A, Anderson to A. M. Wooldridge and on to
J. Mo Gill and finally to Seth Wooldridge, although no dates are given for these
activities, Local historians believe Seth Wocldridge had the front pertion  of
he house built in the early 1B&80s, but his low sale price to Dr. Isaac N. Waltaon

£500  in 1880 suggests that the property had not yet beern developed or
tained only a very modest house, Br. Walton pperated his medical practice
om & small building behind his house and apparently engaged in other business
as well, for he is cited as Todd County's first acknowledged amillionaire. It
orobably was Dr. lWalton who enlarged and remcdeliled the house. In 1895, he and
lhis two orothers sold the property to Ida L. Fepper for $4,000, Mrs. Pepper’'s
parents, the Hirshfields, are said to have paid for the house as a present to
their daughter and son-in-law, BHank of Allensville cashier Thomas L. Fepper, who

D Il T3
oy

(]
- C -

i

were married in 189Z. Interior remodelling incliuding installation of elaborate
case mantelpieces with tiled fireplace gpening surrounds is attributed to the
teppers, under whaose pwnership the house becams known as a center of hospitality.
ffter the deaths of Mr. and MWrs. Fepper, the house stood vacant for several years
betore Deing converted to a nursing home in the 19405, Subsequently, the house
was abandoned and almost lost to deterioration betore it was restored as a
orivate home and bed and breakfast inm in {¥BZ to 1983, (L)

FEﬂCL - Nell preserved c. 1BBO iron fence of siender alternating short and tall

ane~stary gable-front building sheathed in weatherboards has a
g the north elevation, 4 bracketed crown abt the front door, and
iingles and cutwork circular vent in the front gable, An 1nter
rbelled stack identical to those of the main house appear £

14
j:13
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rear gable. The building probably was built in the early 1880s as Dr. HWalton's
ntfice. (C}

_House =-- This almost cubical building sheathed in board and batten is a
ruductlnn of an antebellum Lowisiana building. Three facades contain a
tall, pointed-arched vent which suggests that the building is a single
nrv, althongh it has two levels. Faired brackets appear beneath the cornice of
1& iow-pitched hipped roof. (NC)

.—.-—1,::

e -~ In the early 1980s, +this low-pitched hipped roof supported by four
cted was erected to shelter a nineteenth-tentury well. (NC)

g -~ Built ¢. 1985, this actagonal structure with latticework walls and
ted cornice evocative of Victorian architecture 1s attached by a short
2d passage to the original one-story rear =11 af the main house. (NC)

ille Church of Christ. Block 4, lot i. Tall pointed arches and a square
ge tower with bellcast pyramidal roof projecting from the main facade are
the salient features of this gable-front church erected in 1877, The present
building is the congregation’s second, the first having been & small frame church
gerected in  Pold” Allensville circa 1847, three years aftter they organized.
Although the weatherboards vrecently have been covered with aluminum siding,
distinctive half-round surrounds remain sxposed at the multi-paned stained glass
windows, tall louvered belfry vent and main entrance. Now fronted by aluminum
storm doors, the paired front doors remain unaltered, extending the full height
ot the tall pointed arched opening. The only visible alteration to the interior
is the application of wallpaper to the plaster walls above a molded chair rail
and vertical beaded board wainscoting. Three banks of unpainted pews with raised
nointed arched pansls aon the ends lead to a raised two-tier sguare altar without
an altar rail and flanked by choir pews perpendicular to the npave. Heavy molded
surrounds aiso appear at the interior of the windows, which retain their original
two tiers of louvered and panelled shutters. fbove, a coved ceiling of +{lush
boards painted white is known for its excellent acoustics. The building rests aon
a +ull brick basement containing classrooms and offices and a modern one-story
trame addition covers the rear elevation. (0}

R Turner House. Block 4, lot Z, Fhysician V. C. Turner had this gambrel-frant
house constructed in the 1940s The full-facade porch has been enclosed and
alumiaum has been applied over the criginal weatherbgcards. (NLC)

5. Allensville Upnited Methodist Church Farsonage.  Rlock 4, lot 3. A gabled roof
and brick veneer characterize this one-story ranch house built in  the 1%40s.
{HE})

T. fQilensyille United Methodist Church.  Block 4, lot 3. This solid, comean bond
brick building with a clipped gable-front root and short pyramidal-roofed frame
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is Allensville's oldest religious building, constructed in 1B&7 shortly
ts congregation organized. Each of the three bays of the main facade and
ur havs aof the side slevations containg a tall pointed arch in a slightly
d plane marked by smail corbelled pendants across the top. At the wmain
g, heavy applied molding defines panels in the pair of rectangular doors
g panel in the pointed arch above. f small round window appears in  the
main tacade while the rear elevation is an unbroken expanse of obrick.
tie rod ends on the front and back elevations and a concrete-covered water
projecting more  than a foot bevond the south and rear facades indicate
ires to correct structural problems. The stained glass is a modern addition,
the aluminum on the tower. According to local authorities, the interior is
ively intact. (G}
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nex -~ This gable~front brick-veneered building with metal-framed windows was
structed in the 19505 to house classrooms and an assembly hall. It is linked
the church by a small enclosed passage. {(NC)
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£. Block 11, let 1, Festrained detailing suggesting a neoclassica
UBNCE ﬁmhell::hes this one-story, two-room-deep weatherboarded house with

hiﬁ*fQGfEd main block and gable-rocfed rear ell. The almost full-facade front
porch  has Tuscan columns, corner boards on the main block are melded, and all

,__.
o

caornices are molded with plaian frieze beoards. The two casement windows in  the
gable-roofed front dormer and the one-over-one double-hung sash windows elsewhere
all have crown lintels, The house appears to have been built around 1910, Its

garliest remembered occupants were grocery clerk C1i44  Browder, followed by
machinist J. 5. Forter during the 1930s. (D)

¥, Trailer. Block ti, let 2. This metal-covered mobile home is permansntly sited
on  a brick foundation and fronted along most of one long side by a fixed canopy
orn  metal supports sheltering a concrete patio. A house formerly occupied the
site. (ML}

. Hay Black 11, lat I Vinyl siding covers the facades of Lhis modern one-
story house with a gable roof. {(NHEC)

f. The Cream Station. Glock 11, lot 4. A rectangular talszse parapet facade identi-
ERIR:S 2ratign 3 ¢
fies the compercial nature of this small gable-front building. 5Sheathed in board
and hatten on the side and rear elevations the building displays pressed aetal
5 ¥
in a stone block pattern across the front, wmarked by & small window doar and
Y 5 5

pair ot garage doors hinged on the side. # Earge metal Royal Crown soda sign
remaing pn the south side. Willis L. Breakfield had the building constructed 1n
bhe 19908 as a3 facility to which area residents hraLght their fresh cream for
satle and distribution. Teday if is used for storage. (L)
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Y. W._ L. Breakfield Grocery % Hardware. Block 11y 1ot 4. After working several
YyEArsS Tfor Orr & Minor, Willis L. Hreakfield went into the grocery and harduware
pusiness with his father-in-law, HRichard Harper. After Harper retired, in 1928
Ereaktield had this one-story gable-front building constructed +or his own
business, popularly known simply as “Breakfleld’ 's." The wide storefront caonsists
of plate glass display windows with brick bhulkheads flanking a recessed entrance
with sidelights; a multi-paned transom runs the full widith above & fixed shed
canopy, The south side and upper front are covered with pressed metal in a stone
block pattern, while the bracketed cornice topping the parapet is wooden. (C)

I. Face__House. Biock 13, 1ot 4. Thie one-story weatherboarded house with two
interior chimnevys and offset gabled wings projecting from a low hip-rooted core
remains  intact on the exterior. [Delicate sawn and turned bargeboard appears at
the gables, the porch has a spool frieze and turned posts with sawn spandrels,
and the front windows and door are decorated with panellsd surrounds, corner
blocks, and 3 molded crown with applied scallop trim. The earliest known occu-
pants of this late nineteenth- to early twentieth-century house were Hite S8mall
ftollowed by Mr. Thuraond, both undertakers, prior to 1938 when Mrs. W. T. Face
purchased it. (€}

Storage Building -~ Large modern, shed-roofed, wetal-covered building. (NC)

Camphell House. Block 15, lot &. This one-story house appears to have bheen
built in two stages, The first, dating tc the latter half of the nineteenth
century, produced the brick wing with a low-pitched gabled roof, central chimney
and Four-bay main facade consisting of two central doors and a window to either
sides the frant attic gable and engaged shed porch with simple box pasts appear
to be later alteratiaons. The wing attached to the brick unit's south gable end
has & faile* hipped roof, central chimney and gabled attic dormer above the
narroW ront facade. FRecently, & shed-roofed wing was constructed across the
rear of thu house; the hip-roofed wing was coverad in aluminum siding, and raised
seam tin was applied to the roof. The earliest recalled cccupant of the house was
Mrs. Fred Campbell, Allensville postmaster early in this century. {0}

Warkshap -- A large board and batten-covered shed accommodates an engine regair

business in the rear yard. {(NL})

ER. Blass-Penick House. Block 13, lot 4. Local banker Will C. Glass is the earliest

known ocwner of this decorative, well-preserved turn-of-the-century weatherboarded
house. In 1937, Blass sold the house to Mr. and Wrs. Fenick, whose son continues

to reside here today. The ane-story T-shaped house features pressed tin on  the
cross-gable roof and fluted surrounds with coraer blocks at  the main  facade
windows and two front doors. The design’'s focal point is the +ront gabled wing

with narrow vertical beaded boards at the water table and throughout the gable, a
frieze embossed with hu 175 ye at the base of the gable, and & slightly
grojecting rectangulary, hip t

i

8
rogted bay confaining two narrow windows aoove a

i
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panelled base. (L)

Garage -~ Modern gable-front cinder block building. (NG}

fe]
i"‘l
M

LTS ol

=

ray of patterns executed in wopod identifies this building as a
house probably derived from & popular turn-of-the-century

oo
o

nggg Block 15, 1lot 7. A hipped roof with lower gabled wings
¥

]

ilder's guide fAlso typical of the mode are the tall interior chimneys and the
atterned pressed tin covering the roof. The wraparound porch is supported by
rned posts with bracket spandrels on four sidesy the brick bases may he later
ditions, as is the concrete floor. The porch shelters a clipped facade caorner,
o entrances, and a kevhole window. The south gabled wing has clipped corners
opped by drop pendant spool brackets and imbrecated shingles covering the gables
gzcept for the lower corners filled with carved sunbursts. The front gable 15
similarly treated, excepi that the sunbursts are larger and the shingling extends
across & panelled frieze to cover a hipped bracketed hood above & pair of narrow
windows in the lower wall. The front gable alsc retains remnants of orpamental
bracing, and several of the windows have panelled surrounds and molded dentil
CrouWns. The wearliest known owner of the house was Karl Russell, a physicianj
tater, Mrs. Fanmny Barnes, a widaw, lived here for many vears prior to World War
It. (G}
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00. Joe Orr House. Block 15, 1ot 8. The intluence of the neoclassical revival
styles is evident in the Tuscan porch coluwens of this one-story, twoe-room-deep
center passage plan house with a rear ell, The popular basic house type has a
hipped roof and hip-roofed attic dormer. The house was built arcund 1910 and is
typical of its pericd in its restrained detailing limited to the porch columns,
walded cornices above deep eaves, and small molded crowns above large one-over-
one double-hung sash windows. In addition, a large transom at the front door has
a diamond muntin pattern. Joe {rv, who was a partner in Orr & Winor Grocery and
Hardware, had the house built for his family. During the 1[930s, handyman and
glectrician Warren Hightower lived here. Modern alterations include screening of
the front porch, application of aluminum siding, and an assortment of rear shed
additions. (T}

EE. Orr-HBreakfield House. Eiock 15, lot 9. Like many of the houses built 1in
fillensville during the late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, this
gxample is the popular type identified by its configuration of a hip-roofed core
with offset gabled wings on the front and side elevations and interior chimneys.

The Tuscan columns at the wraparound porch and the transom and sidelights at the

main  entrance reflect the popularity of the neoclassical revival styles early in

is century. With the exception of the application of asbsstos shingles, the
ize 13 intact on the exterior. Frank Orr had the house built for his family in
the warly 15005, Local grocery and hardware store operator Willis L. Breakfield
and his wife acguired the house prior to World War 113 Mrs. Breakfield continues
to ocouny the house, (L)



NPS Form 10-000-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-20)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 7 Page Allensville Historic District, Allensville, Kentucky

Bmall gable-4ront board and battep-covered building, approxi-
with the house. (C)

farage -- Hmall gable-front building covered in corrugated metal. (NC)

FF. Rose__House. Block 14; lot 2. {ne of the plainest houses in the Allensville
Historic District, this early twentieth-century building is one story and one
room deep with a shed-roofed full-facade porch enclosed at one end and a later
shed addition on the south gable end. The house is oriented with the north gahle
end toward the street, Detailing consists of a3 molded cornice above plain frieze
toards, turned porch posts, and flat crowns above one-aver-one double-hung sash
windows. Albert HRose is the earliest known cwner of the property, which was
inherited by his daughter, Mrs. Hoy Maves, an Allensville telephone operatar whao
rasided here many years. (L)

GG. Burchett-Allensworth_ House. Biock 16, 1ot 3. Farmer Fen Burchett 1is the
sarliest remembered owner of this house, which appears to date from the turn of
this cepturyy from the 19305 to the mid-1980s, 1t was owned and occcuped by Mrs.

1 &

Ethel Huff Allensworth, a clerk in one of the local drug stores. The weather-
boarded house cnnJ15ts of a L-shaped main block with two intericr chimneys and a
smaller L-shaped rear wing with an interior end chimney, both cross-gable-roofed.
Decorative opressed tin covers the roof, imbrecated shingles ornament the front
gable, and Tuscan columns suppert the frant porch. (C)

Building -- one-story gable-front building covered in asphalt shingles.

Storage Building -~ one-stary gable-+ront building sheathed in German siding.

Garage -- three-sided cone-story shed of recent vintage (NC)

HH. Shinnick House. Block L&, lot 5. Despite the recent covering of its weather-
bsarda in aluminum siding, this one-story Bueen Anne style house coatinues o
isplay its abundance of well-pressrved turned, sawn and carved decoration.  The
frunt and side gabled wings projecting from the central block with & fall hipped
ruof  exhibit raking boards with sawn ends bearing spoolwork ornsmental  bracing,
but the foral gpeint of the design is the wraparcund porch connecting the fwo
Wings. Here, the entrance bay is on the diaconal, lined up with the enfrance in
a lipped facade corner and marked by a tall engaged gable sperting a boldly
carved & spindie frieze, turnsd posts with sawn and turned spandrels,
A EE with an arcay of cutwork and  turned elements complete  the
Com aodern  shed-roofed addition covers the rear elevatian, The
original owner of the house is not knowny Mrs. Lula 3hinnick, widow of Bank of
A1 ille assistant cashier Charles D Shinﬁick; owned and occupied  the

H e
property for many years beginning in the 1930s {C}
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Garage -~ Modern one-story, gable-front garage and shop.  (NC)
ti. Hughes House. Glock le, lot 4. tocal saloon owner William M. Hughes had this
ans-story Oueen Anne atyip house built at the turn of this century. The weather-
boarded house has a hipped roof with lower gabled wings containing large one-
gver-one double-hung sash windows with flat crown lintels. The decorative
program concentrated on the main facade includes fluted window and entrance

surraunds with wmolded bases and corner blocks, stained glass transoms at  two
single-pane windows and the entrance, and & Falladian window with decorative
muntin pantterms in a gabled attic dormer. The front porch projects slightly at
the entrance bay and features boy posts with molded bases and scallopped
spandrels and a railing with matchstick balusters with spools in between creating
a diamond pattern. (C)

Za
)

Mt. Bilead Baptist Church Parsonage. Block 14, lot 7. Similar to several of its
neighbors in its form of gabled wings extending from a tall hip-roofed core, this
Bugen fAnne stvle house was built in the 1890s or 1900s by Mt. Gilead BEaptist
Church as its parsonage, +or which it continues to be used today. Scaliopped

shingles and sawn ornamental bracing with spoolwork decorate the front gable

above a large window with a leaded ftransonm. Distinctive curving continuous
spandrels with spindlework highlight the wraparound porch. The two entrances
with elaborate Victorian screen doors and a front window all have panelled and
exbossed  surrounds, A small modern shed wing appears at  the rear of the

building. (€}

Sarage -- Modern weatherboarded, gable-front building. (NO)

1 _Hpuse. Block 16, 1ot 8. Although in need of repairs, this one-
haped house with a rear ell retains all of its original exterior
elements. & porch following the contour of the main +tacade has a spindle frieze,
turned posts and a railing with turned balusters, while the front and side gables
are exuberantly decorated with scallopped shingles and large ornamental bracing
intricately deftailed with cutwork, spindles and sawn motifs, Carpenter Hilly
King, who built many of fllensvilie’s late ninsteenth- and early twentieth-
century dwellings, constructed this house for his family., Later it was owned by
fiis daughter and her husband, Walter Carvell, who cperated a popular local soda
fountain and haberdashery for many vears begxnning in the 1910s. (€}

age -~ Tall early twentieth-century gable-front frame building, dilapidated
i F

act. D)
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second incarnation of & community which traces ite origins to a small settlement that
began DﬂE mile to the north and relocated fo th land adjacent fo the depot.
Althoug pothing remains of "old" #Allensville, a diqressian on the area’'s early
b'sLGFy is necessary as gcontext for the railroad fown's develaopment and creservation.

Situated on the Tennessee line in southwestern Kentucky, Todd County received
its first settlers in the early 17908 when it was still part of Lﬁqan and Christian
Counties. Although the socuthern half of the county is gently rolling, arable land,
it was the heavily wooded and very hilly and rocky northern half that atftracted these
pioneers, primarily Virginians who had settled previcusly at Kentucky stations to the
gast. Southern Todd County has rich sgil, but in the [7%0s the land was known as a
"barren" because of its abundance of underbrush as opposed to timber, which had been
dimini shwd with burnings by the Indians. MWithin & century, timber would be plentiful
there, but to the new immigrantis the appearance of the scrubby land with timber anly
at the edqes of streams was alienating.

In the first decade of the new century, howsver, newcomers, now sostly from
Tenn9:=§e and North Carolina, recognized the benefits of the more fertile land and
began building homesteads and clearing fislds in the vicinity of Allensville. By
1308, there were at least eight farms in the area that would be designated the
fllensville magisterial district upon the formation af Todd County in 1819, Through-

he next few decades, thousands of acres were put into cultivation for the first
time as additional immigrants made southeastern Todd County their home; many of thear
names, such as 6Bill, Watkins, Hughes and HBellamy, remain on the area’s tax rolls

today. Although wmost arrived with liesited means, they brought slaves who  helped
plant the easily replenished sail first with tobacco, rotated with corn, oats, wheat
and clover, Most farms were well under 500 acresy very few were over 1,000,

Throughout the nineteenth century, tobacco remained the county’'s major cash crop,
spid abroad, although stock-raising -~ cattle, sheep and horses -- hecame acre preva-
lent during the latter half of the century, prompting an increase in the cultivation

af grains. The minimal development of industry in the nineteenth century has besen
attributed to the scarcity of merchantable timber. Mumerous small grist wills,
dist111wx199 and a tanyard were begun during the 1820s, 18305 and 1840s, but wmost
ceased operation by 1#)U=

Frobanly the +first road butllt through the southern half of the county was
Yentucky 79, the old mail and stage route originaliy known as the Husselliville and
Clarksvillie ([Tennssseel FRoad or the *01d gtate Rﬂad;’ surveyerd as early as 1815,
Less than five years later., FKentucky 10Z, known then as the Elkton, Allensville and
beyshurg Road, was surveyed, and almost as soon as it was begun, "oitd" 4dllensville
sprang up at the juaction of these two roadsy & post office, however, wWas not opaned
kere unitil 1833, There was a family of Allens in the aeighborhood, but it is not
known if they were connected with the town bearing their name. The hamlst was small,
never having more than two stores in ocperation at one time, a blacksmith shop, and 2
nalf dgzen houses. "01d" Allensville’'s first merchant is said to have bzen Hed
Trahue; other early retasilers were Clavborn Wooldridge, Edward fAndersan and Chavies
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Hatcher, and in the 185¢s Spencer Small and D. B, Hutchings were in business here.
At about the same time the settlement was taking shape, a Baptist congregation began

meeting in a private home and soon built a two-story brick church just outside of the
small  town. The Macedonia Congregation of the Christiap Church and a group of
Methodists began worshipping in "old® Allensville brush arbors during the second
guarter of the century, but only the Christians built a church, & shart distance
southeast of the village next to the Rum Spring Creek bridge. The general lack of
interest in education was evident in the swall npumber of subscription schools
scattered throughout the district cutside of Allensville in existing outbuildings or
simple structures built for the purposej the sarliest known school did not open until
1830, The only fraternal organization was the Hasons, whose lodge met in a brick
storeroom in town,

Excent for the Russellville-Clarksville Road, Todd County’'s early highways were
fittle more than often impassable dirt tracks. In fact, as late as 1870 there were
only our wmiles of turnpikes in Todd County, and it was well intoc the twentieth
century before there was any significant improvement. Consequently, as long as roads
were the only mode of tramsportation -- the county had no navigable rivers -~ it was
ditficuit for residents to travel beyond their neighborhoods and merchants had to pay
& premium to have goods shipped in by wagon.

fis railroads became increasingly important in the eastern United States and the
southern states became the predominant market for much of Kentucky due to the needs
of the cotton industry, the idea toc promote an extensive rail system across Kentucky
took haold. fs a result, the Louisville and Nashville Railroad Company was chartered
ir 18530 and completed to Nashvillie in Movember of 1B39; the following vyear the
connection between Bowling Green and Memphis opened. Between Louisville and
Nashville, the best farm lands, market towns and lines of commerce already were well
estahlished, so the railroad could limit its construction costs while serving the
region’s most productive farm lands by following the corrvidor of smooth land extend-

ing down into Kentucky's southern plains. As Charles Martin writes in his study of
the Fennyrile region, "To hold these costs down even further, the L & N did not build
hrough the centers of towns where lot prices were the most expensive, but rather
aid track in the gutskirts, where subseguent dwellings and stores grew up along the
ron pathway and depots.®

Hartin explains that "Rail construction was a speculaltive endeavour. khen word
of the imminent construction of the L & N spread, for example, competition among
counties and towns to have the line pass by them was intense.’ The route Jrom

Lauisville tao ﬁuﬁFﬁrdviiln in Hari County was sasily dstermined, but in order fto
decide wheiher the oute south of Hart County should go th\augh Hlasgow  and
gncounter fewsr 3bsfaans. or follow the shorter path to Bowling Gresn, the company
announced 1t would build the line through the area which raised the larger subscrip-
« It proved fortuitous for Allensville that Bowling Green and Russellvills, both
seats  of counties with sxcellient soil and high incomes, pledoed snormous  subscrip-

izns  that decided the route of the line fo Nashville through Fowling Green and the
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Memphis Branch from Bowling Green through Russellville. Many Todd County politicians
and businessmen wanied the Memphis Branch to continue west from Russellville through
the county seat at Elkton, but the Todd County Judge declined a local petition to
subscribe  $300,000 top secure passzage through the county. It was Allepsville’s
fremendous good fortune, however, that the L & N chose a virtually straight path frows
Russellville to Clarksville, Tennesses, across the southeast corner of Todd County
inta Tennessee. In accordance with their rost control methods, the line avoided
‘allensville, passing within one mile of the hamlet. {The next effort to get a rail
line through Elkteon, in 1867, also failed when the L & N put the lipe acrass the
county’'s southwestern corner through Guthrie and Trenton. At the crassrcads of the L
% N's two major lines, Guthrie naturally became the biggest transportation hub in the
countv, Finally, in 1B84, the L & N built a line connecting Elkton and Guthrie.}

The L % N built a depot one mile southeast of the original hamlet of Allensville
at the junction of the line and the Elkton, Allensvilie and Kevsburg Road, the only
ect route by which goods could be hauled between the railroad and the county . seat
lktan., Allensville was quick to capitalize upon the wealth of opportunitiss
sented by the railroad. Almost as soon as the trains bhegan running in 186G, the
& merchants effectively relocated Allensville by moving their businesses down
the Elkton, Allensville and Keysburg Road to sites adjoinming the tracks. William
Frazier is helieved to have been the first to open a store there, and Spencer Small
constructed a building for his business on the south side of the road, immediately
west of the tracks. Another building went up across the street, but it scon burned.
Most ot the land in that vicinity was owned hy F. A. Anderson and E. W. Hughes.
Although no reqular lots were laid off nor a new town plat made, Anderson soon sold
most of his property to the numerous individuals eager to benefit from the railroad’s
arrival.

In less than a year, development in "new"” Allensville came to a virtual halt
with the onset of the Civil War. Most of the local merchants had to suspend business
due to tack of goods. . fAccording to F. 5. Tyler in an 1B84 history of Todd Lounty,
“strangers from the North and Germans from Louisville" travelled throughout the war
to Allensville to sell their wares.

By 1860, 42 opercent of Todd County's population were slaves. Most of therm
worked in  the fields of the preeminently agricultural southern half of the county,
but many non-farming whites also owned slaves, ocften trained as skilled artisans and
craftsmen, who were hired out. The decades-old political lines between the wealthier
slaveholders of the southern half of the county and the less prosperous; non-slave-
halding citizens of the hill country to the north were clearly drawn as the war
compmenced. Although 4. H. BHattle declared in his 1884 history of Todd County that
the county was upanimously opposed to abolition, able-bodied men in the novthern half
enlisted in the Union Araey while those in the southern half went with the
Contaederats, Faortunately, Todd County was too far west to be a battleground for the
farge arwmies, hut scouting parties kept the community in & constant state  of
insacurifty. For the most gart suffering was minimal and economic in naturs, asids
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from the occasional passages of small bodies of unruly troops, two plunderings by
guerrillas in Elkton and two slight skirmishes near the Christian County line.

fis soon as the war ended, the "foreign” merchants abandoned Allensville and the
iocal husinessmen turned their atiention to regaining control of their economy. Late
in 1HAS, two new commercial buildings were srected by Fhilip Hurshfield and Frazier &
Winston, respectively, and another was put up by newcomer John Adams. The follaowing
-year, another newcomer, R, 0. Bellamy, cpened a furniture store. All of those early
buildings have been d&sfrayed! many of them in a late 1B870s fire; but the two-story
brick Walters-Page Building is believed to date from this peried. With its rectangu-

tar, gable-front form and wood-framed storefront of displav windows +flanking a
recessed  entrance  and topped by & transom, the building is a good representative
gxampls o+ unpretentious brick commercial architecture of the period. Ite construc-

tion +for a4 business owned by a freedman, George Walters, also makes the building
significant as & rare tangible reminder of the number of skilled men in the area’s
gnormous black population who actively participated in the local economy. (The black
community was concentrated outside of the Allensville Historic District in the town's
southwest section, where all but one of the early buildings have lost integrity.]

When “aew” Allensville was incorporated in 18464, 1its charter detfined the
corporation of the town as "a mile sguare, and the limits ewtending a half mile in
any direction +rom the depot.? The burgeoning town was acquiring all of the
trappings of a full-fledged community. As Anderson and Hughes continued to sell

building lots, construction began on builldings cutside the business district. The
Hethadists who had been wmeeting in private homes prior to the war built "new”
Allensvillie’'s first church in 1887, A fraternal organization, the International

rder of {dd Fellows, alsc organized a lodge here, but it disbanded around 1870, In
that year, the U. 5. Census recorded the population of Allensvillie (probably town and
environs) at 310, Apparentiy "old” Allensville was gquickly abandoned, eucept perhaps
for a +few houses. Today there is no physical evidence of the original community, and
itocal historians have no recollection of its buildings.

Of the numerous houses built during the two decades following the end of the
F, the anly two that remain intact are the most pretentious. Situated aon large
ts at the north end of town on the Elkton, Allensviile and Keysburg HRoad, the
ary focus of Allenville’'s development, both the Haddox House and The FPepper
wce recall the new town's prosperity as robust eupressions of popular, mainstreanm
1tectnr91 taste, Merchant €. E. Haddox's two-story brick house with its four-
ge tower was begun around 1870 as the epitome of the fashionable Italianate style.
though the L-shaped house now known as The FPepper Flace was built in  the tradi-
nal two-story, one-room-deep form, its exuberant Eastlake-inspired ornament at the
rch oand roofline was the height of fashion, probably taken from a current builder’s
talog of the 1830s.
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stop:; Northbound No. 102 stopped at night.

Existing husinesses prosoered, some changed hapnds, and new enterprises opened.
West of the district, a new grain mill later known as New Era Mills became
fAllensville's first industry. Within the district, the need for local financing was
met with the establishment of two banks -- The Bank of Allensville, begun around the
turn of the century, and the First State Bank of Allensville, organized in 1909. The
glder bank building has been removed, but the First State Bank’'s gne-story structure
capped by a decorative metal cornice remains as a representative of popular =arly
twentieth-century brick commercial architecture. Elsewhere in the district, the
continued growth of retailing is reflected today by the 18%0s Trade Falace which
prociaimed 1ts success in a parapet front sheathed in metal embossed with foliate and
angular geometric patterns. Typical of ths day, even the simplest commercial

buildings tended to incorporate some degree of ornament, as seen in the fiat  scal-
iopped frieze of the clipped gable-front ouilding constructed to house a shop on one
side and the Allensville branch of the United States Fost O0ffice on the other. (It
was this post office which began, 1in 1897, kKentucky's first rural free mail
dalivery.!

By 1910, the bustling community included Hughes Palace, W. M. Hughes Saloon, Orr
% Minor {groceries and hardware), Small apd Smalil {undertaking and furniture), Eagle
Mili, Caot. C. E. Haddowx (general merchandise), Gill & Viers Trade Palace (dry goods)
and Claude Haddow {grocery), as well as a soda ftountain, haberdashery, pharmacies,
barber shop, ice plant and shosmaker, to mention a few. Prior to 1710, Orr % Minor,
Adams and Potter Dry Goods and 0. H. MNeill’'s pharmacy consolidated to form  the
Allensville HMercantile Company. According to Williams, on sale days the firm
orovided free eniertainment such as bands and midget prize fights, There also were
threse livery stables and a company that sold mules to the U, 8. Araey. The L & N
Railroad’'s construction in 1913 of a new Allensville depot across from the original
gne reaffirmed the town's vitalitv. {Neither depot survives: the original one was
torn down in 1916 and the site today is an empty lot while the site of the second
ne, removed shortly after the L & N ceased service tp Allensville, now is occupied
y a metal quaonset hut used for storage.)

i i

Residential developent played the greatest role in shaping Allensville's built
environment during the 18%0s and {900s., The approximately twenty new houses, most of
them located in the Allensville Historic District, significantly expended the ftown's
housing stock. They also firmly established the Guesen fnne style, {first introduced
in the elaborate decoration of The Fepper Flace, as Allensville’'s identifying archi-
tectural style. The preservation of these houses today serves as a strong visual
reminder of the mode's popularization due fo industrialization and ratlroad expansion
during itne late ninstesnth century.

By the time the Ousen Anne style was transported to this country from England in
the 1870s, American cratismen were well equipped to creats its hallmarks aof irregular
forms and contrasting surfaces using indigenous materials, thanks to the perfection
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of the jigsaw in the 1830s which made it possible to imitate elaborate stone elements
in wooid, though masonry atten was used +or variety, in most areas wood remained
the dcminan* material due to its tremendous ready supply ~- usually sawn and turned
or arnamentation &t porches, gables, and windows, and split and cut for shingled
heathing in place of the English tiles. As the concept of mass production took hold
following the Civil War, saw and planing mills proliterated across the country. Many
of  their products and services were inspired by architectural freatises and plan
o
u
i
El

JI‘

books that could be widely disseminated as a result of antebellum advances in
publishing and printing. Hy the 1880s, many successful metropolitan architects were
circulating their designs far bevond the regions in which they opracticed through
catalogs and magazines such as the Scientific American Architects and Builders
Edition. With the spread of transportation and communication networks and the
qrcwlﬁu availability of modern machinery during the late 18B80s, large-scale manufac-
turing and distribution became feasible and profitable, and the wmost fashionable

u

architectural styles soon appeared in the hinterland. At the turn of the century, it

was no longer unusual for even the smallest community, especially if situated on
ail line, to feature Bueen Anne style houses seemingly lifted from the pages of a

builders’™ guide, their ornament made at a leocal planing wmill or ordered through a

e publicatian.

21}

This trend remains clearly evident in the Allensville Historic District, where a
spate of one-story frame houses built during the 1890s and 19005 are fully Queen Anne

in both form and decoration. Seven houses represent a principal type of Bueen Anne
dwelling in theiv form of a hipped roof with lower cross gables lent individuality
through detailing, Several displav a program of spindlework at the vrvoofline and

porch  and  ornamental shingles and panelling of flush beaded boards in the gabled
wings, while pthers integrate spindlework with neoclassical features such as  Tuscan
porch columns and Palladian windows. Local historian Doug Penick belisves that most
of these houses were built by Allensville carpenter Billy ¥ing, who could have
gbtained the millwork easily from an Elkton lumber vard or sources farther away via
the railroad. The King-Carvell House, which King built for himself, is best termed
i Folk Victorian house due to its traditional T-shaped form embellished with a rich
array of standard millwork. Both Folk Victorian houses and plainer traditional house
tvoses continued to be built alongside the more fashionable residences occupied by
aerchants, ministers and doctors as well as seai-retived farmers who chose to live in

town while supervising tenants who farmed their acreage out in the county. Residen-
tial consiruction continued into the 1910s, when asvameirical forms ang furned and

sawn millwork ogave way to simpler hip-roofed boxes with restrained neoclassical

or
]
o

epression, the wperiod betwesn the world wars evokes positive
iong-time Allensville Fesidents, Thers was little construction in  the
rict as most of the lots already were developed. Storefrants  remained
gstablished businesses as well as some new ones, such W. L. Breakfield
Hardware, which constructed ite own building in 1928, and Hlanche and
1178 millinery shop begun arocund 1933, As in the rest of the reglon, the
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ocal economy suffered, but the only business failure was the early 1930s closing of
he Bank of Allensville. The 1930s even wiitnessed the beginning of #Allensville's
cond  industry when William Frit: organized the Kentucky Woven Label Company in  a
gwntown building; &y 1741, he had installed the operation in a new stone building
hind rza house. The major public improvement of the period was the construction of
municipal building in 1938,

The more than forty years since the end of Werld War I1 have taken their toll on

fliensville. The town received natiaonal attention for its all-female town board and
mayor appointed in 1943; during the twenty-{five vears they served, a cvity indebted-
ness was paid, new street lights were installed, and other public improvements were
made, In spite of their efforts, however, the town center steadily declined
following the L & N's closing of the depot in 1947 because of operating losses., With
road improvements, proliferation of automobile and truck traffic, and lack of popula-
tian grawth, Allensville was no longer a major shipgping point nor a viable market for
rail service, {ine by one, local businesses closed, leaving empty storefronts up and
down the main street, when the label manufacturer ceased opesrations in the 1974s,
Allensville’'s economy once again was almost exclusively agricultural. Today,
Allensville Grain Company, formerly New Era Mills, is the town's major emplover,
occupyinag & modern processing plant at the sdoe of town. Trains continue to  pass
through  town, but today their only fAllensville stop is at the mill te pick up grain
shipments. Most of the rewmaining commercial buildings are uwsed for tobacco
processing, while the Walters-Fage Building serves as a popular gathering spot  for
iocal  +farmers. Many residents commute to iobs in Elkion or other nearby county
czats, #lthough its official population remains ahove 300, Allensville bas not been
incorporated since 1578,

is somewhat ironic that Allensville’'s preservation may be ativibuted in part
to the L% N Railroad's departure. [t is true that the closing af businesses led to
detericration and the eventual ruin of several historic buildings, vyet the economic
downturn also prevented the inappropriate renovation of early buildings in the name
of progress that characterizes many small towns., Hetailing and professional services
disappeared from central Allensville, but thriving area farms and easy access to
employment elsewhere have lent a stability to the regional economy which has main-
tained a markei for Allensville's existing housing and has provided limited alterna-
tive uses for its commercial stock. An appreciation for the town's historic fabric
is evident in the careful preservation and restoration of several houses in  the
district by long-time Allensville families and newcomers alike. In  addition, all
three churches in the district are well maintained and used regularly by congrega-
tions of their respective original denominations. 1t is hoped that +the recent
restoration and adaptive vreuse of The Pepper Flace is indicative of a growing
rﬁni al interes j
tiag
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Battle, J. H., editor. County of Todd, Kentucky. _ Historical and Hiographical.
Chicango and Louisvilles F. A. Battey Publishing Co., 1884

McClain, HNellis Les. Interviews conducted at her HKozy Korner vrestaurant in
dllensville, Kentucky,lMay and July 1588.

Martin, Charles. "The FPennyrile Cultural Landscape.” Unpublished manuscript
prepared for the Kentucky Heritage Council, 1988,

Fenick, Doug. Interviews and scrapbooks of Allensville historical memorabilia at his
home outside Allensville, Kentucky, May and July 1988,

Williams, Frances Marion, The Story of Todd County, Kentucky_ 1820-1970. Privately
printed, 1971,

Todd__County: A History and a Heritage In Hrief. Cadiz, FKentucky:
y Lake Print Shop, 1971.
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UTk_Reference

itn

_lecantinued)

El 14/ 494040/4062900
F} 16/7494155/4063150
B) 14/ 4939340/4063310
H) &/ 493580/4063300

I} 16/.493580/4063360

ki

Verbal Boundary Justification (continued)

historically associated with the primary resources have been included. In the
following instances, rear or side portions of yards have been excluded because they
are large areas under cultivation or contain severely altered, detericrated or modern
ancillary buildings and thus do not contribute to the historic character of the
district: entries 4, D, X, Y, AA, BB, CLC, DD, FF, II, JJ ant KE.
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The following information applies to all of the photographs:

11 Allensville Historic DRistrict
21 Allensville, Kentucky

v L. R. Brown

4y Mav 1988

31 Kentucky Heritage Council

{1} i} The Pepper Flace/Wooldridge-Walton-Fepper House (entry F)3 Block {, 1

4y to the east

{2y i} View From The Fepper Flace to fields bevond northwest edge of distric
4) to the northwest
(31 1) {44ice {right! and Carriage House at The Fepper Place (entry P}y BRI

iot |
47 to the east

{41 1y Allensville Church of Christ f{entry 8); Block 4, lot 1
&1 to the east

(%) 1) Haddox House f(entry B}y Map 10Z, lot Z4
&1 to the narth

{&¢ 1} Haddox House (entry B); Map 102, lot 24
41 to the northuwest

{7y 1y Aliensville United Methodist Church {entry 713 Block 4, lot 3
47 to the sputhwest

ot |

i

ack 1,

Officay

By 1} Trailer {entry Vi; Block i1, lot 2
&  to the south
{(9) i} 4. L. Breakfield Brogery & Hardware ({entry Yip; 8lock 11, lot 4
&1 to the sauth
{10y 1y Trade Palace {(left, eniry Fi, Block 10, 1ot 3, and {(Former Fost
Butcher Bhop f(entry G}, Block 19, lat 4
&y to the sast
{111 1y First GState Bank {right), Telephone Exchange, {Former PFost Dffice/Butcher
Shon, and Trade Palace
&) to the naorthwest
{12y 1y Niew of Buonset Hut and Allensville Brain Cosmpany, both outside of di
&Y to the southwest
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(13} 1} View from railroad tracks of Walters-Fage Building, Cole-Fritz House and Mt.
filead Baptist Church
4y to the southeast

{143 1} HWalters-Fage Building {entry L)3; Block t4, lat |
&) to the northeast

(1%) 1} FEentucky Woven Label Company (entry M); Block 14, let ©
&} to the esast

Cole-Fritz House (entry N}y Elock 14, lot 9
to the southeast

P
[
—

{(17) 1) H®t., Gilead Baptist Church (entry 0); Hlock 14, lot 8
&1 to the northeast

{(18) 1} Campbell Hpuse {(entry AA); Block 13, lot &
41 to the southwest

e
P

-
et
o
oy
~d

{19} 1) Russell-Barnes Housse (entryv CC)3 Block
4} to the southwest

1201 1y Jdoe lrr House lentry DD)y Block 15, lot 8
& to the southwest

(21

et
]

™~
od

i} Burchett-Allensworth House (entry GG8): Block L&,
&) to the scuthwest

{22y 1} BSBhinnick Houss {entry HY3 Block 16, 1ot 5
4) to the southeast

{23y 1) Hughes House (entry 11} Block 16, lot &
4} to the south
{(74) 1) Ht. Gilead Baptist Church Farsonage {entry JJ)g Block 1é&, laot 7

&) to the south



